
Planning and Zoning Commission

City of Grand Prairie

Meeting Agenda - Final

City Hall

300 W. Main Street 

Grand Prairie, Texas

Video Conference6:00 PMMonday, August 24, 2020

Due to an imminent threat to public health and safety arising from the COVID-19 

pandemic, this meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be held via 

videoconference.  The members of the Commission will participate remotely via 

videoconference.  No facility shall be available for the public to attend in person. 

Members of the public may participate in the meeting remotely via broadcast by webinar 

or telephone through the following URL location:

You are invited to a Zoom webinar.

When: Aug 24, 2020 06:30 PM Central Time (US and Canada)

Topic: City of Grand Prairie - Planning & Zoning Meeting

Please click the link below to join the webinar:

https://gptx.zoom.us/j/91916748111?pwd=RFVuN3hQeDF3UkhzejBLcjl6MEpHUT09

Passcode: gdARBp467f

Or iPhone one-tap : 

    US: +13462487799,,91916748111#,,,,,,0#,,9300637279#  or 

+12532158782,,91916748111#,,,,,,0#,,9300637279#

Or Telephone:

    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):

        US: +1 346 248 7799  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 408 638 0968  or +1 669 900 6833  or 

+1 301 715 8592  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 876 9923

Webinar ID: 919 1674 8111

Passcode: 9300637279

    International numbers available: https://gptx.zoom.us/u/acsr2F7vmX

All meeting participants will be automatically muted until it is their turn to speak.  To be 

recognized to speak, use the “raise hand” feature in the Zoom meeting platform.  Those 

joining the meeting by phone may press *9 to raise your hand.  After speaking, please 

remute your phone by pressing *6. 

Any speaker wishing to visually display documents in connection with a presentation must 

submit them to sware@gptx.org and msespinoza@gptx.org in PDF format no later than 

3:00 o’clock p.m. on Monday, August 24th.

Page 1 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020



August 24, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

Call to Order - Commissioner Briefing 

It is the intent of the Planning and Zoning Commission to be briefed by staff, and that all 

items on the agenda shall be available or open for discussion during the Briefing Session.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission may ask applicants and other interested parties for 

information or presentations.  All interested parties are invited to attend.  Briefings are 

taped.

*Agenda Review

*Planning and Zoning Commission Meetings During COVID-19

                                                 __________________________________

                                                                    Public Hearing                                                             

                                                           6:30 p.m. Video Conference

                                                 __________________________________

                                                  Chairperson Joshua Spare Presiding

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flags and to the Texas Flag 

Citizen Comments -  Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes 

on any item not the agenda by completing and submitting a speaker card.

Public Hearing Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be 

approved by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public 

Hearing Consent Agenda items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be 

considered separately.  The Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from 

the Public Hearing Consent Agenda.

1 20-10288 Approval of Minutes of the August 10, 2020 P&Z meeting. 

PZ Draft Minutes 08-10-2020.pdfAttachments:

Page 2 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020



August 24, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

2 20-10245 P200801 - Preliminary Plat - Heritage Towne (City Council District 6).  Preliminary 

Plat for Heritage Towne, a single family residential development with 104 residential 

lots and 9 open space lots on 39.539 acres.  Tracts 186713 and 186714, J 

Lawrence Survey, Abstract No.616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas.  

Zoned PD-399 and addressed as 2925 Davis Drive.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Attachments:

3 20-10282 P200802 - Final Plat - Mira Lagos East Commercial Addition, Lot 33, Block D 

(City Council District 4).  A Final Plat to create Lot 33, Block D out of 1 acre from 

the BBB & C RR Survey.  Tracts 2.7, and 4.1, BBB & C RR Survey, Abstract 

1700, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365, Lake Ridge 

Parkway Overlay, generally located west of Lake Ridge Parkway and south of 

England.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Attachments:

4 20-10283 P200803 - Final Plat - Lake Ridge - Grand Peninsula Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City 

Council District 4).  A Final Plat to create Lot 1, Block 1 out of 3.545 acres from the 

BBB & C RR Survey.  Tracts 2.3, and 3, BBB & C RR Survey, Abstract 1700, City 

of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365, Lake Ridge Parkway 

Overlay, generally located west of Lake Ridge Parkway and north of S. Grand.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Attachments:

5 20-10285 P200401 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 4 (City Council District 6).  Final Plat 

for Greenway Trails Phase 4, creating 131 residential lots and three non-residential 

lots on 62.129 acres out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of 

Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas.  Zoned PD-322 and generally located north of 

US-287, east of SH-360, and west of FM-661.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Phase 4 Overview.pdf

Exhibit C - Final Plat.pdf

Exhibit D - Infrastructure Connection.pdf

Attachments:

Page 3 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020



August 24, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

6 20-10286 P200402 - Final Plat for Greenway Trails Phase 5, creating 129 residential lots and 

six non-residential lots on 75.830 acres out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract 

No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County.  The subject property is zoned 

PD-322A and is generally located north of US-287, east of SH-360, and west of 

FM-661.

Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Phase 5 Overview.pdf

Exhibit C - Final Plat.pdf

Attachments:

7 20-10284 S200803 - Site Plan - Ashton Sawing (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for an 

industrial contractor shop and office space on 3.705 acres 3.705 acre tract, Tarpley 

Holland Survey, Abstract No. 750, (R.E.S.Subdivision) City of Grand Prairie, 

Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-371, generally located southeast Jefferson Street 

and S. Great South Parkway, and addressed as 415 S. Great Southwest Parkway.

Exhibit A Location Map

Exhibit B S200803 SP

S200803 Exhibit C Landscape Plan

Exhibit D S200803 Elev

Attachments:

Public Hearing Postponement, Recess, and Continuations

8 20-10287 SU200801/S200801 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Race Trac - Roy Orr & 

Trinity (City Council District 1).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a Truck Stop 

with Gas Sales on 4.188 acres.  The subject property is zoned Light Industrial (LI) 

District and is located within State Highway-161 (SH-161) Overlay Corridor District. 

Situated in the J. Reed Survey, Abstract 1183, Grand Prairie, Dallas County, the 

4.188-acre property is generally located at the southeast corner of Trinity Boulevard 

and Roy Orr Boulevard, specifically addressed at 3109 & 3113 Roy Orr Blvd.

9 20-10281 CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2).  

Concept Plan for the Cottages at Dechman, a multi-family development with a 

mixture of attached and detached units on 15.91 acres.  Tract 2 of Leonidas O'Gwinn 

Survey, Abstract No. 1105, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 

PD-20, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located at the 

northwest corner of Dechman Dr and the IH-20 frontage road.

Page 4 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020



August 24, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.7 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing 

for which notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or 

after the time and place the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed 

and continued any time after the hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.7.C of the UDC 

states if a postponement or continuance of a public hearing is to a specific date and time no 

later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, the announcement of the 

postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has been 

postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and 

no additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct 

staff to re-notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet 

commenced.

Items for Individual Consideration

Public Hearing

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under 

Public Hearing Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a 

request to speak card.  A person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her 

support or opposition to a case without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the 

entrance to the City Council Chambers and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff 

member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of 

the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those favoring the request shall have 

a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments for the request.  

Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that 

representatives be appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  

Commissioners may have questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to 

answer the Commission's questions will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These 

rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole or in part, by a unanimous vote of the 

Commission.

Adjournment

Page 5 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020



August 24, 2020Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Agenda - Final

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., the 

Planning and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted on 08/21/2020

Monica Espinoza

Planning Secretary 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible.  If you plan to attend this public meeting and you 

have a disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 

hours in advance. Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs.

Page 6 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10288 Name: Approval of Minutes of the August 10, 2020 P&Z
meeting.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/18/2020 City Council

On agenda: Final action:8/24/2020

Title: Approval of Minutes of the August 10, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: PZ Draft Minutes 08-10-2020.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
Approval of Minutes of the August 10, 2020 P&Z meeting.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



1 
 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 AUGUST 10, 2020 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Josh Spare, Vice-Chairperson Shawn Connor, 
Secretary Max Coleman, and Commissioners, Cheryl Smith, Julia Perez, Bill Moser, Eric Hedin. 
     
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Warren Landrum 
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Deputy City Manager Bill Crolley, Bill Hills, Savannah Ware, Chief 
City Planner, Mark Dempsey, Deputy City Attorney, Brett Huntsman, Transportation Planner, 
Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant. 
  
Chairperson Josh Spare called the meeting to order by Video Conference at 6:35 p.m. and 
Commissioner Moser gave the invocation, and Chairperson Spare led the pledge of allegiance to 
the US Flag, and the Texas Flag. 
 
Citizen Comments: None  
 
AGENDA ITEM: #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES: To approve the minutes of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting of July 27, 2020.  
  
CONSENT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #2- P190101 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails 
Phase 2 (City Council District 6).  Final Plat for Greenway Trails, Phase 2, 108 residential Lots 
and 4 open space/common lots.  53.338 acres out of the J. Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, in 
the City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas. Zoned PD-Planned Development and generally 
located west of F.M. 661, east of SH-360, and north of U.S. Hwy 287. 
 
 
Item #3 – P200302 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 3 (Commissioner Spare/City Council 
District 6).  Final Plat consisting of 131 residential lots and 7 common lots on 53.315 acres out of 
the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas. Zoned 
PD-322 Generally located north of US-287, east of SH-360, and west of FM-661. The applicant is 
Justin Bosworth, DR Horton, the consultant is Edward Eckart, Goodwin and Marshall, and the 
owner is Benjamin Clark, D.R. Horton. 
 
  



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, AUGUST 10, 2020 
 

2 
 

 
 

Vice Chairperson Connor moved to approve the minutes, cases P190101 and P200302 
 
Motion:  Conner    
Second:  Moser                                
Ayes: Spare, Moser, Connor, Fisher, Smith, Coleman, Hedin, Perez 
Nays:  None 
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
ITEM #4 Z200701/CP200701 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - January Hill (City Council District 
5). Chief City Planner Savannah Ware presented the case report and gave a Power Point 
presentation for a Zoning Change and Concept Plan for January Hill, a proposed development with 
Single Family Townhouse, Multi-Family, and General Retail Uses on 22.5 acres.  Tracts 3.1, 3.4, 3.6 
P H Ford Survey, Abstract No. 1711, Tracts 4.1, 4.2, 4.7, and 4.9, Joseph C Reed Survey, Abstract 
No. 1729, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-108, PD-196, SF-4, and GR, within 
the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located west of SH-161 on the south side of 
January Ln. 

 
Ms. Ware stated the purpose of the request is to rezone the subject property to a Planned 
Development District for Single Family Townhome, Multi-Family and General Retail Uses. The 
applicant is proposing a Planned Development District for Single Family Townhouse, Multi-Family 
and General Retail Uses.  The Concept Plan depicts the elements listed below. 

 A proposed retail building on 3.89 acres that is accessible from two points on January Lane. 

 Twelve multi-family residential buildings and one leasing/clubhouse building on 15.97 acres.  
The multi-family buildings are placed close to January Lane and configured to frame the 
primary internal drive and screen surface parking lots from view. 

 The drive that connects to May Lane is for emergency access only with a secured gate at the 
property line and another secured gate closer to Building 13. 

 Five clusters of townhome units on 2.74 acres.  The townhomes are placed adjacent to existing 
single family homes to serve as a buffer between the homes and the higher density multi-
family buildings.  

 A central open space amenity featuring trails and the preservation of existing trees.  This 
feature serves as a natural buffer to the adjacent single family homes. 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, AUGUST 10, 2020 
 

3 
 

 
 

Chairperson Spare asked Ms. Ware if she could go over the requirements of the covered and garage 
parking. Ms. Ware stated this is a conceptual plan at this stage of the parking requirements. 
Appendix W states 30% of the required parking spaces have to be garages and 20% carports and 
applicant has not requested any variances for parking at this moment. 
 
Chairperson Spare asked would the townhomes be a separate zoning to avoid the applicant from 
changing the stories of the first building from two stories to four stories in the future and remain 
with the stair step concept. Ms. Ware stated concept plan ties them to developing townhomes at 
that location and they would not be able to build multi-family apartments.  
 
Chairperson Spare asked do the four story buildings require for elevators. Mr. Crolley stated 
anything with four stories or higher would require for elevators. 
 
Commissioner Smith asked is January Hill close to an industrial area. Ms. Ware stated there is a 
warehouse directly across from the project site. 
 
Commissioner Coleman asked for Ms. Ware’s opinion about the applicant requesting a variance 
for the gate. Ms. Ware stated Appendix W requirements states it has to have a gated entry but the 
design of the project seems to be driving the request for the variance and staff does not object to 
it. 
 
Chairperson Spare asked if May Lane connects to this development. Ms. Ware stated there is an 
emergency access only gate on May Lane and residents living in the townhomes would not be able 
to enter or exit from that gate.  
 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and called 
for individuals wishing to speak on this item.  
 
Hamilton Peck, Hamilton Commercial LLC, 2705 Concrete Cir. Grand Prairie TX. Mr. Peck stated 
the amount of internal open green space equates to two and a half football fields. Dalworth Creek 
runs right through the development area and they will leave it 100% undisturbed. Mr. Peck also 
stated he uses Lincoln Properties for all of his developments and they are the leaders in the area 
when it comes to looking at the market. He has noticed two things happen even before COVID 19, 
many young professionals move out of populated areas like downtown, uptown and seek the 
suburbs. 
 
Vice Chairperson Connor asked who would be responsible for the up keep of the creek. Ms. Ware 
stated the creek would have to plat as a separate lot and it would need maintenance by an HOA 
organization. Vice Chairperson Connor asked Mr. Peck, what contingency plan he has for an HOA. 
Mr. Peck stated the creek would be part of the overall maintenance and landscaping plan. 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, AUGUST 10, 2020 
 

4 
 

 
 

There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser, moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case Z200701/CP200701 as recommended by staff with additions of the 
townhomes following the stair step of two, three and four stories but for it not to exceed four 
stories. 
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Moser  
Second:  Perez                           
Ayes:  Spare, Moser, Connor, Fisher, Smith, Coleman, Hedin, Perez 
Nays: None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TABLE ITEM #5 SU200802/S200802 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Jack 
In The Box (City Council District. Chief City Planner Savannah Ware presented the case report 
and gave a Power Point presentation for a Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a 2,765 sq. ft. 
restaurant with a drive-through on 1.19 acres.  Lot 4, Block B, Epic West Towne Crossing Phase 
1, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH 161 Corridor Overlay 
District, and addressed as 3146 S HWY 161. 

 
Ms. Ware stated the applicant intends to construct a 2,765 sq. ft. restaurant with a drive-through 
in Epic West Towne Crossing.  Restaurants with a drive-through require a Specific Use Permit 
when located within a Corridor Overlay District.  Development in a Planned Development District 
or Corridor Overlay District requires Site Plan approval by City Council.  Development at this 
location requires City Council approval of a Site Plan because the property is zoned PD-364 and 
within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District. The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that 
development meets requirements in the Unified Development Code (UDC), provides adequate 
circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques.  The UDC identifies criteria for evaluating 
proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards, landscaping and 
screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts. The purpose of the Specific 
Use Permit process is to identify those uses which might be appropriate within a zoning district, but 
due to either their location, functional or operational nature, could have potentially negative impact 
upon surrounding properties; and to provide for a procedure whereby such uses might be permitted 
by further restricting or conditioning them so as to eliminate such probable negative impacts. The 
applicant intends to construct a 2,765 sq. ft. restaurant with a drive-through in Epic West Towne 
Crossing.  The site is accessible from Esplanade via shared access drives on properties to the north 
and south.  The Site Plan includes the building, parking spaces, fire lane and access drives, and a 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, AUGUST 10, 2020 
 

5 
 

 
 

dumpster enclosure. The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the 
following condition: 

1. The developer shall provide an enhanced landscape area with plantings west of the building 
as a compensatory measure for 0% windows on the west facade.  The enhanced landscape 
area shall be comparable to the areas shown in Attachment i - Examples of Enhanced 
Landscape Area. 

 
Chairperson Spare stated there were no questions for staff, opened the public hearing, and called 
for individuals wishing to speak on this item.  
 
David Gregory, Icon Consulting Engineers, Inc, 2840 W South Lake Blvd Ste. 110 Southlake TX. 
76092. Mr. Gregory stated he has no problem enhancing the landscape on the west side and the 
reason why they are not building windows on that side is because the cooler/freezer sits on that 
end and it is not a nice view.  ON the east side of the building, they are short of the required area. 
Mr. Gregory asked for consideration to allow less glazing then what it required by the code and 
approve the variance as presented.  
 
Chairperson Spare asked Mr. Gregory if he is fine with the increase in landscape. Mr. Gregory 
stated most definitely.   
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Smith, moved to close the public 
hearing and approve case SU200802/S200802 per staff’s recommendations.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion: Smith 
Second:  Perez                           
Ayes:  Spare, Moser, Connor, Fisher, Smith, Coleman, Hedin, Perez 
Nays: None  
Approved: 8-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, AUGUST 10, 2020 
 

6 
 

 
 

Commissioner Moser moved to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 7:21 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________  
Joshua Spare, Chairperson  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________  
Max Coleman, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An audio recording of this meeting is available on request at 972-237-8255. 
 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10245 Name: P200801 - Preliminary Plat - Heritage Towne

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/6/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/24/2020

Title: P200801 - Preliminary Plat - Heritage Towne (City Council District 6).  Preliminary Plat for Heritage
Towne, a single family residential development with 104 residential lots and 9 open space lots on
39.539 acres.  Tracts 186713 and 186714, J Lawrence Survey, Abstract No.616, City of Grand Prairie,
Ellis County, Texas.  Zoned PD-399 and addressed as 2925 Davis Drive.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
P200801 - Preliminary Plat - Heritage Towne (City Council District 6).  Preliminary Plat for Heritage Towne, a
single family residential development with 104 residential lots and 9 open space lots on 39.539 acres.  Tracts
186713 and 186714, J Lawrence Survey, Abstract No.616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas.  Zoned

PD-399 and addressed as 2925 Davis Drive.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Preliminary Plat for Heritage Towne, a single family residential development with 104 residential lots and 9
open space lots on 39.539 acres. Tracts 186713 and 186714, J Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of
Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas.  Zoned PD-399 and addressed as 2925 Davis Drive.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of this request is to preliminary plat 104 residential lots and nine open space lots to facilitate the
development of a single family subdivision on 39.539 acres.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10245, Version: 1

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-322 Gas Wells, Undeveloped

South Agriculture; ETJ Residential, Commercial, Cemetery

West Agriculture Undeveloped

East Agriculture Undeveloped

HISTORY:

· April 21, 2020: City Council approved a zoning change and concept plan creating Planned
Development-399 District for single family, multi-family, and general retail uses (Case Number
Z200401).

DEVELOPMENT CHARACTERISTICS:

The 104-lot subdivision will be accessible from Davis Drive by two proposed roads, which will transition from
public right-of-way to private streets just west of the Tarrant Regional Water District (TRWD) easement. All
internal roads will also be private. It will be the responsibility of a mandatory homeowner association (HOA)
to maintain the private roads.

The subdivision includes two types of residential lots: single family-four and single family-six. Lots developed
under the single family-six standards will have alley service with rear garage entry. Development is subject to
PD-399 and Appendix W.  The following table summarizes the development standards for both types of lots.

Table 2: Development Standards

SF-4 SF-6

Min. Lot Area (sq. ft.) 7,200 5,000

Min. Lot Width (ft.) 62 50

Min. Lot Depth (ft.) 110 100

Min House Size (sq. ft.) 1,800 1,400

Min Front Setback (ft.) 25 20

The developer will be required to establish a Public Improvement District (PID) and HOA at the time of final
platting.  Engineering plans are currently under review.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Fm
 661 Rd 

Double Oak Av

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number P200801
Heritage Towne ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 1 of 6



Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 2 of 6



Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 3 of 6



Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 4 of 6



Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 5 of 6



Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat
Page 6 of 6



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10282 Name: P200802 - Final Plat - Mira Lagos East Commercial
Addition, Lot 33, Block D

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/18/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/24/2020

Title: P200802 - Final Plat - Mira Lagos East Commercial Addition, Lot 33, Block D (City Council District 4).
A Final Plat to create Lot 33, Block D out of 1 acre from the BBB & C RR Survey.  Tracts 2.7, and 4.1,
BBB & C RR Survey, Abstract 1700, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365, Lake
Ridge Parkway Overlay, generally located west of Lake Ridge Parkway and south of England.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
P200802 - Final Plat - Mira Lagos East Commercial Addition, Lot 33, Block D (City Council District 4).  A
Final Plat to create Lot 33, Block D out of 1 acre from the BBB & C RR Survey.  Tracts 2.7, and 4.1, BBB & C
RR Survey, Abstract 1700, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365, Lake Ridge Parkway

Overlay, generally located west of Lake Ridge Parkway and south of England.

Presenter
Jonathan Tooley, Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Final Plat for Mira Lagos East Retail Addition, Lot 33, Block D. Tracts 2.7, and 4.1, BBB & C RR Survey,
Abstract 1700, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365, Lakeridge Parkway Overlay,
generally located west of Lake Ridge Parkway and south of England Parkway.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is to create one lot of 1 acre to facilitate future retail development at this location.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10282, Version: 1

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-298A Undeveloped

South PD-365 Single-Family Townhomes

West PD-365 Single-Family Townhomes

East PD-298A Undeveloped

HISTORY:

· December 04, 2017: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for Mira Lagos
Townhomes North which included the Retail lots (Case Number P171204).

PLAT FEATURES:

The Final Plat depicts existing utility easements and establishes utility and wall maintenance easements.

The property is zoned PD-365 for General Retail uses. The following table summarizes the density and
dimensional requirements.  The Final Plat meets these requirements.

Table 2: Summary of Requirements

Standard Required Provided

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 43,560

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 209

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 178

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Lake Ridge Pkwy

England Pkwy
Napa Ln

Chablis Dr

S Grand Peninsula Dr

Ca
lis

to
ga

 Ln

Ex
plo

ra
do

r

Ri
es

lin
g W

ay

M
er

lo
t P

l

Del Sol Ct

Ventura Ln

La Cala  Dr

Fuente  

La Cumbre Way

Cima Way

St.helena Ln

Shiraz Rd

Estado  

Zinfandel Rd

Sonoma  Ln

Chianti W
ay

Chard o nnay Ct

England Pkwy

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number P200802
Mira Lagos East Commercial AdditionLot 33, Block D ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Final Plat
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10283 Name: P200803 - Final Plat - Lake Ridge - Grand
Peninsula Addition, Lot 1, Block 1

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/18/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/24/2020

Title: P200803 - Final Plat - Lake Ridge - Grand Peninsula Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 4).
A Final Plat to create Lot 1, Block 1 out of 3.545 acres from the BBB & C RR Survey.  Tracts 2.3, and
3, BBB & C RR Survey, Abstract 1700, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365,
Lake Ridge Parkway Overlay, generally located west of Lake Ridge Parkway and north of S. Grand.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Final Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
P200803 - Final Plat - Lake Ridge - Grand Peninsula Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City Council District 4).  A
Final Plat to create Lot 1, Block 1 out of 3.545 acres from the BBB & C RR Survey.  Tracts 2.3, and 3, BBB &
C RR Survey, Abstract 1700, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365, Lake Ridge Parkway

Overlay, generally located west of Lake Ridge Parkway and north of S. Grand.

Presenter
Jonathan Tooley, Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Final Plat for Lake Ridge - Grand Peninsula Addition, Lot 1, Block 1. Tracts 2.3, and 3, BBB & C RR Survey,
Abstract 1700, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365, Lakeridge Parkway Overlay,
generally located west of Lake Ridge Parkway and north of S. Grand Peninsula Drive.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is to create one lot of 3.55 acres to facilitate future retail development at this
location.

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10283, Version: 1

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-298A Undeveloped

South PD-365 Single-Family Townhomes

West PD-365 Single-Family Townhomes

East PD-297C Multi-Family Development

HISTORY:

· December 04, 2017: The Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat for Mira Lagos
Townhomes North which included the Retail lots (Case Number P171204).

PLAT FEATURES:

The Final Plat depicts existing utility easements and establishes utility and wall maintenance easements.

The property is zoned PD-365 for General Retail uses. The following table summarizes the density and
dimensional requirements.  The Final Plat meets these requirements.

Table 2: Summary of Requirements

Standard Required Provided

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 154,426

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 233

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 647

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Lake Ridge Pkwy

Napa Ln
Chablis Dr

Ca
lis

to
ga

 Ln

Ventura Ln

S Grand Peninsula Dr

Cima Way

England Pkwy

Co
nc

ha
 D

r

M
er

lo
t P

l

La Cala  Dr
La Cumbre Way

St.helena Ln

Shiraz Rd
Zinfandel Rd

Sonoma  Ln

Chianti W
ay

Catarata Way

England Pkwy

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number P200803
Lake Ridge - Grand Peninsula AdditionLot 1, Block 1 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



____________________ _______________

©   

P
L

O
T

T
E

D
 
B

Y
:
 
A

N
D

R
E

A
 
T

A
Y

L
O

R
 
D

A
T

E
:
 
8

/
1

3
/
2

0
2

0
 
5

:
1

1
 
P

M
 
P

A
T

H
:
 
P

:
\
2

8
9

1
-
0

3
-
0

1
\
5

0
0

 
L

a
n

d
 
S

u
r
v
e

y
i
n

g
\
5

0
5

 
P

l
a

t
t
i
n

g
\
2

8
9

1
-
0

3
-
0

1
 
M

i
n

o
r
 
P

l
a

t
.
d

w
g

” “ ”

” ” “ ”

” ” “ ”

” “ ”

” ” “ ”

” ” “ ”

” ” “ ”

” ” “ ”

”

____________________  ______________________

_________________________________

_______________
_______________

__________________________

____ _______________

______________________________________________________

_________________________________



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10285 Name: P200401 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 4

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/18/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/24/2020

Title: P200401 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 4 (City Council District 6).  Final Plat for Greenway
Trails Phase 4, creating 131 residential lots and three non-residential lots on 62.129 acres out of the
Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas.  Zoned PD-322
and generally located north of US-287, east of SH-360, and west of FM-661.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Phase 4 Overview.pdf

Exhibit C - Final Plat.pdf

Exhibit D - Infrastructure Connection.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
P200401 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 4 (City Council District 6).  Final Plat for Greenway Trails Phase
4, creating 131 residential lots and three non-residential lots on 62.129 acres out of the Joseph Lawrence
Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas.  Zoned PD-322 and generally located
north of US-287, east of SH-360, and west of FM-661.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

SUMMARY:

Final Plat for Greenway Trails Phase 4, creating 131 residential lots and three non-residential lots on 62.129
acres out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, Texas. Zoned
PD-322A and generally located north of US-287, east of SH-360, and west of FM-661.

ADJACENT LAND USE:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10285, Version: 1

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and land use of surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North City of Mansfield Undeveloped/Gas Well
South PD-399 for Mixed Use Undeveloped/Gas Well
West PD-322 for Mixed Use Undeveloped/Gas Well
East Agriculture (A) District Undeveloped; FM 661

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is to create 131 residential lots and three non-residential lots to facilitate single-
family development.

HISTORY:

· August 8, 2006: City Council approved PD-322 (Z060601/CPA060601), zoning 384.27 acres for single-
family residential, including TND (Traditional Neighborhood Development) and mixed use
regional/employment center uses.

· 2007-2008: Multiple gas wells were permitted in and around the property which impacted the potential
layout of residential lots within PD-322: Merrill 1H & 2H, permitted 2007; and Orr Unit 1H-4H,
permitted 2008.

· August 30, 2016: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat (P160301) for
Greenway Trails, including a preliminary layout for 5 residential phases and depicting 135’ Tarrant
Regional Water District (TRWD) pipeline easement cutting through majority of TND portion of original
PD.

· 2016-2019: TRWD constructs water line through majority of TND portion of original PD.

· April 1, 2019: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Final Plat (Case Number P181102) for
Greenway Trails, Ph. 1 consisting of 98 residential lots and 4 non-residential lots.

· March 3, 2020: City Council approved an amendment to PD-322 (Case Number Z060601A), removing
the TND elements from Phase 5.

· August 10, 2020: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Final Plat for Phase 2 (Case Number
P190101).

· August 10, 2020: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Final Plat for Phase 3 (Case Number
P200302).

DEVELOPMENT CHARACTERISTICS:

Phase 4 depicts 131 residential lots developed under the Type 1 and Type 2 zoning schemes detailed in PD-
322A. The required lot dimensions are outlined in the following table:

Table 2: Development Standards

Type 1 Type 2

Number of Lots 88 43

Min. Lot Area (sq. ft.) 9,000 7,800

Min. Lot Width (ft.) 75 65

Min. Lot Depth (ft.) 120 120

Min House Size (sq. ft.) 2,000 1,800; 2,000

Min Front Setback (ft.) 25 25

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10285, Version: 1
Table 2: Development Standards

Type 1 Type 2

Number of Lots 88 43

Min. Lot Area (sq. ft.) 9,000 7,800

Min. Lot Width (ft.) 75 65

Min. Lot Depth (ft.) 120 120

Min House Size (sq. ft.) 2,000 1,800; 2,000

Min Front Setback (ft.) 25 25

The developer has established the required Public Improvement District (PID) for this development.
Engineering plans are currently under review.

The TRWD easement cuts through the Greenway Trails development and the adjacent property to the
northwest. Page five of Exhibit C - Final Plat shows the portion of the easement included in Phase 4. TRWD
limits the number of times rights-of-way can cross the easement. Due to this constraint, and in order to
facilitate the development of land surrounding the easement, Staff is recommending a condition that the
developer of Greenway Trails provide a point of access to infrastructure (right-of-way, water, and wastewater)
for the property to the northwest. Staff has identified two possible points - Lot 30 and Lot 25, Block 15 - for
the developer to consider.  Exhibit D - Infrastructure Connection illustrates the possible connections.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee recommends approval with the following conditions:

1. Prior to submitting the plat for City signatures, the developer shall revise the plat to create a point of
access to the northwest property. The revised plat shall depict the necessary right-of-way dedication,
utility easements, and wall maintenance easements; and

2. Landscaping and screening wall plans shall be submitted and approved by staff prior to filing of the
plat.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Fm
 66

1 R
d 

Davis Dr

Gifco Rd

S H
wy

 36
0 S

b
S H

wy
 36

0 N
b

Hwy 287  

Seeton Rd

La
ke

vie
w 

Dr

Lowe Rd

Lone Star Rd

Miller Rd

Harmon Rd

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number P200401
Greenway Trails Phase 4 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T360

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Phase 4 Overview
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 1 of 6



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 2 of 6



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 3 of 6



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 4 of 6



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 5 of 6



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 6 of 6



H
ID

D
EN

 H
O
LL

O
W

 D
R
IV

E

R
EE

N
 W

BLOCK 15

21
9,000

SQ. FT.

22
9,000

SQ. FT.

17
7,800

SQ. FT.

18
7,800

SQ. FT.

19
11,587
SQ. FT.

20
13,706

SQ. FT.

56

27
9,000

SQ. FT.

26
9,000

SQ. FT.

33
9,299

SQ. FT

25
9,846

SQ. FT.

32
9,299

SQ. FT.

24
11,285

SQ. FT.

31
9,299

SQ. FT.

30
9,299

SQ. FT.

29
9,017

SQ. FT.

28
9,000

SQ. FT.
N 61°06'42" E   753.59'

537.11'

L=73.92'

L=
73.9

2'

L=
73.

92'

L=3.72'

71
.23

'

75
.00

'

75
.00

'

75
.00

'

1.08'

L=
70

.8
2'

L=
10

7.
90

'

N 39
°3

2'3
8" 

E
81

.65
'

N 52°18'36" W
120.01'

75
.00

'

75
.00

'

75
.00

'

75
.33

'

N
 2

1°
55

'2
9"

 E
82

.1
2'

N 
32

°0
9'1

8"
 E

94
.4

2'

N 52°29'46" W   130.93'
10

4.6
4'

75
.00

'

75
.00

'

34
.70

'
L=

44.
36

'

L=
82.

56'

L=

65
.00

'

86
.97

'110.00'

109.99'

L1
8

N 52°29'46" W   120.00'

96
.97

'
11

4.6
4'

N 37
°3

0'1
4"

 E
65

.00
'

75
.00

'

65
.00

'
75

.00
'

N 37
°3

0'1
4"

 E
37

.66
'

N 52°29'46" W
120.00'

N 52°29'46" W   120

N 52°29'46" W
120.00'

N 52°29'46" W
120.00'

N 50°10'31" W
120.00'

N 52°29'46" W
120.00'

92.44'

L19

=1
00

.0
3 '

N 52°29'46" W
120.00'

N 52°29'46" W
120.00'

N

N 52°29'46" W
120.00'

N 41°12'50" W

120.00'

N 63°19'03" W120.00'

N 44°54'45" W

120.00'

N 48°36'41" W
120.00'

N 52°29'46" W   120.00'

23
9,214

SQ. FT.

24
9,398

SQ. FT

74
.19

'
N 38

°0
7'1

7" 
E

27
.37

'
46

.

N 37
°3

0'1
4"

 E 
  3

24
.34

N 37
°3

0'1
4"

 E 
  2

97
.31

'

288.95'

CALLE
D 98.41 ACRES, TR

ACT 1

SUNBELT L
AND INVESTMENTS/360, LT

D.

VOL. 2
746, PG. 1136

D.R.E.C.T.

C
2

30
0.3

3'

N 37
°3

0'1
4"

 E

15
' U

.E.
25

' B
.L.

15
' U

.E.
25

' B
.L.

15
' U

.E.

25
' B

.L.

C
ALLED 98.41 AC

RES, TRAC
T 1

SUNBELT LAND INVESTM
ENTS/360, LTD.

VO
L. 2746, PG

. 1136

D.R.E.C
.T.

 W
   766.19'

753.59'

N61°06'42"E

BLOCK 15

15
' U

.E.25
' B

.L.

15
' U

.E.

25
' B

.L.

29
7.3

1'

N 37
°3

0'1
4"

 E

N 52°29'46" W   120.00'

N 52°29'46" W   1

N 52°29'46" W   120.00'

N 37

R=1
12

0.0
0' L=

980.94' ∆=50°1

CB=N62°3
5'41

"E
CL=

94

H
ID

D
EN

 H
O
LL

O
W

 D
RI

VE

J. L
AW

RENCE SURVEY

ABSTRACT NO. 616

J. L
ABST

25'
25'50'

25
'

25
'

50
'

N 43
°1

4'1
7" 

E
81

.65
'

N 46
°56

'12
" E

81
.65

'

N 50°38'08" E

81.65'

5' W.M.E.

BLOCK 18

BLOCK 15

63X
882,549
SQ. FT.

1/2" I.R.F.

(P
UB

LIC
 R

/W
)

)

(PUBLIC R/W)

L=
61

4.8
3

L=
27

.0
6 '

L=
14

7.
7 2

'

10' U.E.

15
' B

.L
.

15' B.L.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN ZONE "A" PER

F.I.R.M. NO. 48139C0025F
DATED: JUNE 03, 2013

5' F.M.E.

5' F.M.E.

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF
100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN ZONE "A" PER

F.I.R.M. NO. 48139C0025F
DATED: JUNE 03, 2013

APPROX. LOCATION OF

130' T.C.W.C. & I.D. NO. 1 EASEMENT

VOL. 490, PG. 551

D.R.E.C.T.

N 37
°3

0'1
4"

 E 
  3

00
.33

'

OPEN SPACE

ER
O

SI
O

N
 H

A
ZA

RD
SE

TB
A

C
K

EROSION HAZARD

SETBACK

ULTIMATE 100-YEAR FLOODPLAIN

PER GOODWIN & MARSHALL, INC."

FLOOD STUDY FDP # 20200214-1

LF

LFE =

56
0.4

0'

LFE =

56
1.5

0'

LFE
 =

56
2.5

0'

LF
E 

=
56

3.5
0'

LF
E 

=
56

3.5
0'

LF
E 

=
56

4.2
0'

LF
E 

=
56

4.7
0'

LF
E 

=
56

5.2
0'

LF
E 

=
56

5.
70

'

Possible Connection 1

Possible Connection 2

Adjacent Property

TRWD Easement

Impacted Lots

Exhibit D - Infrastructure Connection
Page 1 of 1



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10286 Name: P200402 - Final Plat for Greenway Trails Phase 5

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/18/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/24/2020

Title: P200402 - Final Plat for Greenway Trails Phase 5, creating 129 residential lots and six non-residential
lots on 75.830 acres out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis
County.  The subject property is zoned PD-322A and is generally located north of US-287, east of SH-
360, and west of FM-661.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A - Location Map.pdf

Exhibit B - Phase 5 Overview.pdf

Exhibit C - Final Plat.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
P200402 - Final Plat for Greenway Trails Phase 5, creating 129 residential lots and six non-residential lots on
75.830 acres out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County.  The
subject property is zoned PD-322A and is generally located north of US-287, east of SH-360, and west of FM-
661.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
SUMMARY:

Final Plat for Greenway Trails Phase 5, creating 129 residential lots and six non-residential lots on 75.830 acres
out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County. The subject property
is zoned PD-322A and is generally located north of US-287, east of SH-360, and west of FM-661.

ADJACENT LAND USE:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and land use of surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North City of Mansfield Undeveloped/Gas Well
South PD-399 for Mixed Use Undeveloped/Gas Well
West PD-322 for Mixed Use Undeveloped/Gas Well
East Agriculture (A) District Undeveloped; FM 661

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10286, Version: 1

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North City of Mansfield Undeveloped/Gas Well
South PD-399 for Mixed Use Undeveloped/Gas Well
West PD-322 for Mixed Use Undeveloped/Gas Well
East Agriculture (A) District Undeveloped; FM 661

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The purpose of the Final Plat is to create 129 residential lots and six non-residential lots to facilitate single-
family development.

HISTORY:

· August 8, 2006: City Council approved PD-322 (Z060601/CPA060601), zoning 384.27 acres for single-
family residential, including TND (Traditional Neighborhood Development) and mixed use
regional/employment center uses.

· 2007-2008: Multiple gas wells were permitted in and around the property which impacted the potential
layout of residential lots within PD-322: Merrill 1H & 2H, permitted 2007; and Orr Unit 1H-4H,
permitted 2008.

· August 30, 2016: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Preliminary Plat (P160301) for
Greenway Trails, including a preliminary layout for 5 residential phases and depicting 135’ Tarrant
Regional Water District (TRWD) pipeline easement cutting through majority of TND portion of original
PD.

· 2016-2019: TRWD constructs water line through majority of TND portion of original PD.

· April 1, 2019: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Final Plat (Case Number P181102) for
Greenway Trails, Ph. 1 consisting of 98 residential lots and 4 non-residential lots.

· March 3, 2020: City Council approved an amendment to PD-322 (Case Number Z060601A), removing
the TND elements from Phase 5.

· August 10, 2020: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Final Plat for Phase 2 (Case Number
P190101).

· August 10, 2020: Planning and Zoning Commission approved a Final Plat for Phase 3 (Case Number
P200302).

DEVELOPMENT CHARACTERISTICS:

Phase 5 depicts 129 residential lots developed under the Type 3 and Type 4 zoning schemes detailed in PD-
322A. The required lot dimensions are outlined in the following table:

Table 2: Development Standards

Type 3 Type 4

Number of Lots 14 115

Min. Lot Area (sq. ft.) 8,640 6,820

Min. Lot Width (ft.) 72 62

Min. Lot Depth (ft.) 120 120

Min House Size (sq. ft.) 2,000 1,800; 2,000

Min Front Setback (ft.) 25 25

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10286, Version: 1

Table 2: Development Standards

Type 3 Type 4

Number of Lots 14 115

Min. Lot Area (sq. ft.) 8,640 6,820

Min. Lot Width (ft.) 72 62

Min. Lot Depth (ft.) 120 120

Min House Size (sq. ft.) 2,000 1,800; 2,000

Min Front Setback (ft.) 25 25

The developer has established the required Public Improvement District (PID) for this development.
Engineering plans are currently under review.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee recommends approval with the following condition:

1. Landscaping and screening wall plans shall be submitted and approved by staff prior to filing of the
plat.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Fm
 66

1 R
d 

Davis Dr

Hwy 287  

S H
wy

 36
0 S

b
S H

wy
 36

0 N
b

Gifco Rd

La
ke

vie
w 

Dr

Lowe Rd

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number P200402
Greenway Trails Phase 5 ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T360

Exhibit A - Location Map
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit B - Phase 5 Overview
Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 1 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 2 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 3 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 4 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 5 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 6 of 7



Exhibit C - Final Plat
Page 7 of 7



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10284 Name: S200803 - Site Plan - Ashton Sawing

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/18/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/24/2020

Title: S200803 - Site Plan - Ashton Sawing (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for an industrial contractor
shop and office space on 3.705 acres 3.705 acre tract, Tarpley Holland Survey, Abstract No. 750,
(R.E.S.Subdivision) City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-371, generally located
southeast Jefferson Street and S. Great South Parkway, and addressed as 415 S. Great Southwest
Parkway.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A Location Map

Exhibit B S200803 SP

S200803 Exhibit C Landscape Plan

Exhibit D S200803 Elev

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
S200803 - Site Plan - Ashton Sawing (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for an industrial contractor shop and
office space on 3.705 acres 3.705 acre tract, Tarpley Holland Survey, Abstract No. 750, (R.E.S.Subdivision)
City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-371, generally located southeast Jefferson Street and S.

Great South Parkway, and addressed as 415 S. Great Southwest Parkway.

Presenter
Charles Lee, AICP, CBO, Senior Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

on one lot on 3.705 acres The 3.705 acres property consisting of (R.E.S. Subdivision Addition),) situated in the
Tarpley Holland Survey, Abstract No. 750 City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Tarrant County located southeast of
Jefferson Street and S. Great Southwest Parkway., more specifically addressed at 415 S. Great Southwest
Parkway.  The property is zoned Planned Development-271 (PD-271) District.

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10284, Version: 1

The applicant intends to construct a 7,500-sq. ft. building on 3.705 acres. Site Plan approval by City Council is
required for any project involving commercial use. Development at this location requires City Council
approval of a Site Plan because the property is intended for industrial contractor warehouse and office use.

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-387 & CO Auto Dealership & Commercial
Retail Uses

South CO Motel/Hotel Uses

West CO Vacant

East PD-371 Open Storage Uses

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The site will be accessible from Great Southwest Parkway. The access drive will provide both ingress/egress to
the proposed shop and office facility. The site includes a designated fire lane that loops around the building.
The 7,500 sq. ft. building includes a 5,500 sq. ft. shop/warehouse space and a 2,000 sq. ft. office space. The
site plan provides adequate employee and visitor parking spaces. Company vehicles will be parked overnight
on-site.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

Development is subject to the LI standards in the UDC. The following table evaluates the density and
dimensional standards of the proposed development. The proposal meets the density and dimensional
requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 161,390 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.)      100     333 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.)      150     411 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.)        25       80 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.)          0        0 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.)         25      25 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio        1:1 0.04:1 Yes

Parking

The required number of parking spaces is calculated based on use. The following table shows the required

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10284, Version: 1

The required number of parking spaces is calculated based on use. The following table shows the required
parking and provided parking.  The number of parking spaces exceeds what is required.

Table 3: Required Parking

Use Standard Required Provided

Office 1 Space/325 sq. ft. 7 36  (2 HC Spaces)

Shop 1 Space/1,000 sq. ft. 6   6

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 of the UDC. The table below
summarizes these requirements.  The proposal meets the landscape and screening requirements.

Table 4: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.)               3,200             35,372                Yes

Trees (Site)                 7                13                 Yes

Shrubs                64               113                 Yes

Building Materials and Design

As reflected on the building exterior elevations, the building will consist of 54% metal panel and 26% masonry
exterior elements and roughly 4% glazing. The western elevation facing S. Great Southwest Parkway provides
for primarily masonry (thin-set) stone design with glass door store front and three windows. The four (4) bay-
doors are orientated in a north-south fashion but will not be primarily visible from the street.

VARIANCES:

The applicant is not requesting any variances.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Co
x S

t
W Main St

W Jefferson St

We Roberts St

S G
re

at
 So

ut
hw

es
t P

kw
y

Sherman St

Hines Av

Hospital Blvd

Pa
rk

wa
y D

r
Nw

 25
th

 St

E Abram St

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number S200803
Ashton Sawing ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦30

EXHIBIT A





12'' W 12'' W 12'' W 12'' W
2'' W

EX-8'' SS EX-8'' SS EX-8'' SS EX-8'' SS EX-8'' SS

4'' SS

4'' SS
4'' SS

EX-6'' SS
EX-6'' SS

EX-6'' SS

EX-6'' SS

EX-6'' SS

EX-6'' SS

EX-6'' SS

EX
-6

'' S
S

5 TC

1
ESP2
ZEX

ZEX8

5 IJ7
BM

S

5 R
S

6 AS
R

Y3

R
Y6

6
ZEX

C
O1

C
O1

4
M

FG

3 R
Y

PM8

C
O1

C
E1

7
M

FG

1 C
E

54
D

BH

C
E1 C
E1C

E1C
E1

C
E1

1 C
O

1 C
O 1 C

O

X1

EXH
IBIT C



EXHIBIT D



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10287 Name: SU200801/S200801 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan
- Race Trac - Roy Orr & Trinity (City Council District
1)

Status:Type: Ordinance Public Hearing Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/18/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/24/2020

Title: SU200801/S200801 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Race Trac - Roy Orr & Trinity (City Council
District 1).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a Truck Stop with Gas Sales on 4.188 acres.  The
subject property is zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and is located within State Highway-161 (SH-
161) Overlay Corridor District. Situated in the J. Reed Survey, Abstract 1183, Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, the 4.188-acre property is generally located at the southeast corner of Trinity Boulevard and
Roy Orr Boulevard, specifically addressed at 3109 & 3113 Roy Orr Blvd.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza

Title

SU200801/S200801 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Race Trac - Roy Orr & Trinity (City Council District 1).
Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a Truck Stop with Gas Sales on 4.188 acres.  The subject property is
zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and is located within State Highway-161 (SH-161) Overlay Corridor
District. Situated in the J. Reed Survey, Abstract 1183, Grand Prairie, Dallas County, the 4.188-acre property is
generally located at the southeast corner of Trinity Boulevard and Roy Orr Boulevard, specifically addressed at
3109 & 3113 Roy Orr Blvd.

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Table

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10281 Name: CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman

Status:Type: Agenda Item Public Hearing Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/18/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:8/24/2020

Title: CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2).  Concept Plan for the
Cottages at Dechman, a multi-family development with a mixture of attached and detached units on
15.91 acres.  Tract 2 of Leonidas O'Gwinn Survey, Abstract No. 1105, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned PD-20, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located at the
northwest corner of Dechman Dr and the IH-20 frontage road.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2).  Concept Plan for the Cottages at
Dechman, a multi-family development with a mixture of attached and detached units on 15.91 acres.  Tract 2 of
Leonidas O'Gwinn Survey, Abstract No. 1105, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-20,
within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located at the northwest corner of Dechman Dr and

the IH-20 frontage road.

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Table

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 8/21/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10288
	Microsoft Word - 08-10-2020.docx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10245
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8740117&GUID=EFA1E89E-B855-4599-AC42-70EC933820B1
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8740119&GUID=016FB6B9-13B3-44F4-957E-70D35E20C95C
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10282
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8738824&GUID=944C26A0-7D34-4EA2-91D0-554B4EA6F6B0
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8738823&GUID=DAD85295-1043-4693-845F-25E8B5C560D9
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10283
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8738853&GUID=F025249F-94AF-4FF8-8026-13313890739D
	SHEET 1 OF 1
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10285
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8739154&GUID=EB41AD43-D1E2-46B1-A27D-3F40A7A8184E
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8739156&GUID=1F39547D-D600-4D03-9011-70AFD5AB4DF9
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8739157&GUID=60F56707-C8FD-48D0-863C-3F68C7571599
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8739415&GUID=F29BD027-CB29-434E-B31B-43CE3A91B1B8
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10286
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8739303&GUID=6AA860C0-13BA-416B-B576-856E12C7C3F2
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8739306&GUID=C1D52A18-FDD5-4138-8F5E-3C724D355449
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8739307&GUID=6CF33831-ED25-458C-827B-0F0D33C2E300
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10284
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8734482&GUID=00F5C787-FA25-4DC3-9086-6E4D34E0352E
	EROSION CONTROL DETAILS (4)
	L1.01
	N:\20-1017.00 Ashton Grand Prairie\05 CAD\A3series A3.1 (1)
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10287
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10281




